
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL

Date & Time - Tuesday, 31 July 2018 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel:

Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), G R Aley, J R Astill, M D Booth (Vice-Chairman), 
C J T H Brewis, G K Dark, P C Foyster, R Grocock, J L King, J D McLean, A M Newton, 
M D Seymour, A C Tennant, J Whitbourn and S Wray

Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may be appointed only 
from members who are not on the Cabinet.  Substitutions apply for individual 
meetings only. 

Quorum: 5

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:   23 July 2018



A G E N D A

1 Apologies for absence. 

2 Minutes – To sign as a correct record the minutes of the following 
meetings:

a)  Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development 
Panel - 24 April 2018 (copy enclosed)

(Pages 
3 - 8)

b)  Performance Monitoring Panel - 2 May 2018 (copy enclosed). (Pages 
9 - 24)

3 Declaration of Interests. - Where a Councillor has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must declare the interest to the 
meeting and leave the room without participating in any discussion or 
making a statement on the item, except where a councillor is permitted 
to remain as a result of a grant of dispensation.

4 Questions asked under Standing Order 6 

5 Tracking of Recommendations - To consider responses of the Cabinet 
to reports of the Panel.

6 Items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

7 Key Decision Plan - To note the current Key Decision Plan (Pages 
25 - 30)

8 Performance Overview Report Quarter 1 2018-19 - To provide an 
update on Council performance for the period 1 April 2018 to 30 June 
2018 (report of the Executive Director, Strategy and Governance 
enclosed).

(Pages 
31 - 60)

9 Enforcement Update - To provide members with an update on 
enforcement activity (report of the Executive Director Place enclosed).

(Pages 
61 - 68)

10 South Holland Centre Catering Lease and Service Level Agreement - To 
provide an update on the future catering options at the South Holland 
Centre (report of the Executive Director Place enclosed).

(Pages 
69 - 70)

11 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme - To set out the Work 
Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel (report of the 
Executive Manager Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer) enclosed).

(Pages 
71 - 78)

12 Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent - 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency.



- 1 -

Minutes of a meeting of the JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, 
Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 24 April 2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

G R Aley
J R Astill
F Biggadike
M D Booth
T A Carter
H Drury

L J Eldridge
A Harrison
J D McLean
A M Newton
J L Reynolds
M D Seymour

E J Sneath
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
Whitbourn
A R Woolf

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors B Alcock, 
C J T H Brewis and J L King.

In Attendance:  The Executive Councillor, Commercial and Environmental 
Management at Lincolnshire County Council (Chairman of the Lincolnshire Waste 
Partnership), the Portfolio Holder for Place (SHDC), the Senior Commissioning 
Officer (Waste) at Lincolnshire County Council, the Environmental Services Manager 
(SHDC) and the Democratic Services Officer.

Action By
30. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

Councillor A R Woolf was elected Chairman for the duration of the 
meeting.

31. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were no declarations of interest.

32. CONSULATION OF THE LINCOLNSHIRE JOINT MUNICIPAL 
WASTE MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

The Senior Commissioning Officer (Waste) at Lincolnshire County 
Council provided the Joint Panel with a presentation.  It provided 
information on the following:

 Who formed the Lincolnshire Waste Partnership (LWP);
 Which waste functions were undertaken by which partner of 

the LWP;
 Strategic Drivers to the proposed Strategy;
 Vision for the Strategy;
 Process for consultation on the Strategy, how the Strategy 

would be finalised and actioned; and
 Members roles in the process

Page 3

Agenda Item 2a)



- 2 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 24 April 2018

Members of the Joint Panel had also received a report, appended 
to which were the Strategy consultation draft, the Strategy 
consultation draft (summary), and the Waste Strategy Public 
Consultation Survey.

Members considered the information from the report and the 
presentation, and the following issues were raised.  Responses 
were provided by a panel of officers and members consisting of 
the Executive Councillor, Commercial and Environmental 
Management at Lincolnshire County Council (who was in 
attendance in his capacity as the Chairman of the Lincolnshire 
Waste Partnership); the Portfolio Holder for Place (SHDC); the 
Senior Commissioning Officer (Waste) at Lincolnshire County 
Council; and the Environmental Services Manager (SHDC).

 The Portfolio Holder Place stated that the proposed Strategy 
would lay out high level ambitions and goals.  SHDC was out 
of step with neighbouring local authorities with regard to waste 
collection, but the Authority would hold with the principle of 
responding to what local residents said as part of the 
consultation.  If change was proposed, a significant body of 
evidence would be required to illustrate why changes were 
being made. The Lincolnshire Waste Partnership was 
currently in the early stages of considering processes for 
waste collection and recycling.  The main priority was to get 
best value for Council Tax payers, and trying to keep costs 
down while being tuned in to residents wishes.

 SHDC was unique in the area in undertaking weekly waste 
and recycling collections in sacks.  Would this continue?

o Weekly collections could continue if this was the 
preferred option. Once all issues had been 
considered, and where there was sufficient evidence 
to be presented to elected members, current 
collection methods could continue, despite cost, if 
members were happy to continue as currently.  The 
purpose of the partnership was to make most 
effective use of resources however, waste collection 
was still a local choice.

o Officers also clarified that legislation meant that the 
waste collection authority decided how waste would 
be collected.  The disposal authority stipulated 
where it was dropped off.

Page 4



- 3 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 24 April 2018

 Incorrect items being placed in waste and recycling bags 
continued to be a problem.  This problem had to be overcome 
for the Strategy to work well.  What could be done to help 
educate the public?

o Contamination in recycling was a problem and going 
forward, consideration needed to be given to 
ensuring that only products that did not cross-
contaminate were put together.  Instructions for the 
public needed to be kept simple – this was not 
necessarily the case presently.  Clear instructions of 
what could go in each bag was required.  

 An action plan was not included as part of the consultation – it 
was suggested that by having sight of this, it would be easier 
for respondents to see how proposals may affect them.

o The consultation process had specifically not 
included an action plan as the consultation aimed to 
produce ideas and opinions.  Officers would use 
these ideas and opinions to produce an action plan 
using responses that were felt to be feasible and 
affordable.

 Why was the Strategy being looked at now, before the 
outcomes of Brexit and how legislation may be affected was 
known?

o There were many factors affecting waste issues, not 
only Brexit. The LWP had not had a new Strategy 
for many years, hence the need for one now. In 
addition, the Partnership did not want a stationary 
strategy – it would to be responsive and would not 
be a static document.  

 Table 5.18 within the draft Consultation document  (providing 
information on residual and total waste vs recycling rates for 
local authorities in Lincolnshire in 2016/17) showed that 
household waste reused, recycled  or composted within SHDC 
was the lowest of all authorities in the County.  Could other 
districts’ practices be used to improve SHDC’s figures? 

o Other authorities included garden waste tonnage in 
their figures which accounted for much of their 
higher rates.  SHDCs figure of 28% was a good 
representative figure however, contamination issues 
were a problem – this needed to be looked at but 
money was required to do this. 

Page 5



- 4 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 24 April 2018

 Could the Authority be fined for not hitting targets?
o No, it was a national target and SHDC contributed to 

this as a whole.  Targets were not necessarily the 
best measure, it was more important to do the right 
thing and recycling needed to be dealt with in the 
correct way.

 How could the message relating to waste/recycling/littering be 
communicated, both to the indigenous population and those 
residents whose first language was not English?

o This was an issue and sometimes cultural 
differences were more of a problem than language.  
These messages generally needed to be 
communicated but would be one of the most difficult 
to address.

o Education in schools would  be important, with 
children spreading the message.  

 Could engagement with businesses be undertaken e.g. what 
were businesses doing to reduce waste or, from a commercial 
perspective, could digestion plants take product in?

o There were a number of issues with anaerobic 
digestion, including the need for a consistent 
feedstock, the exact makeup of which varied 
between facilities.   

o Officers reiterated that there was a real desire to do 
something productive with the waste collected, and 
going forward, viable options needed to be 
investigated.

 Real efforts needed to be made in clearing up the District – the 
public had to be educated in disposing of waste correctly, and 
fines given to those that fly-tipped and littered.  

o Members were advised that two Community Warden 
posts had been created and appointments to these 
posts made – funding for these posts was for two 
years. Their prime role was to issue fixed penalty 
notices to those that littered, and an increase in 
fines should be seen at a local level.

 Could people be incentivised to recycle?
o Education was the main factor – this had been 

scaled back over the years at a local level, but it 
was hoped that one of the outcomes of a new 
Strategy would be a greater focus on education. 

Page 6



- 5 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 24 April 2018

 Over the years, there had been a number of changes to the 
way in which recycling was undertaken.  There was a real 
feeling that the public wanted to be ‘greener’ and recycle 
effectively.  Ways needed to be found to engage with the 
public in this respect and make it easier for them.

o Consistency of collections was more important than 
how it was undertaken by different authorities.  The 
current combination of materials collected could be 
changed, and there were many combinations and 
collection methods available.  It was important to 
gain an idea of the desire/commitment to change 
and then officers/members would work out how this 
could be taken forward.  

o Members were of the opinion that recycling should 
be split, keeping glass, metal and plastics together, 
separate from paper and cardboard, but collected 
on the same days.

Members thanked officers for the information provided.  Officers 
advised that, in addition to the points raised in the meeting, 
members should also respond individually to the consultation:

The link to the Lincolnshire Joint Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy consultation web page was:
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/recycle-for-lincolnshire/waste-
strategy-for-lincolnshire/

The email address for queries was:
wastestrategy@lincolnshire.gov.uk

AGREED:

a) That the contents of the report and appendices be noted;

b) That the following issues raised by the Joint Panel be taken 
forward:

 Educating residents was seen as an essential tool in 
reducing littering, and increasing the uptake of valid 
recycling;

 Enforcement - encourage the public not to litter or fly tip 
and where possible, fine perpetrators;

 Keep recycling processes simple – the national mood to be 
‘greener’ should be harnessed and the most cost effective 
and environmentally friendly solutions should be sought;

Page 7

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/QsmPC9Qvvuk74KwiOAHyK?domain=lincolnshire.gov.uk
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/QsmPC9Qvvuk74KwiOAHyK?domain=lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:wastestrategy@lincolnshire.gov.uk


- 6 -

JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING 
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL - 24 April 2018

 The Portfolio Holder Place and the Environmental Services 
Team to look at how glass, metal and plastics could be 
collected with paper and cardboard but kept separate;

 Continuity of collections; and

c) That members respond on an individual basis to the 
consultation on the draft Lincolnshire Joint Municipal Waste 
Management Strategy. 

33. ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were no urgent items.

(The meeting ended at 8.31 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 8



- 31 -

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 2 May 
2018 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

B Alcock (Chairman)
M D Booth (Vice-Chairman)

G R Aley
J R Astill
C J T H Brewis

T A Carter
P C Foyster
J D McLean

A M Newton
A C Tennant
J Whitbourn

In Attendance: The Portfolio Holder Communities and Facilities, the Portfolio Holder 
Housing and Health, the Executive Director Commercialisation, the Place Manager, 
the Communities Manager, the Environmental Services Manager, the Building 
Consultancy Manager, the Emergency Planning Officer, the Acting Inward Investment 
Manager, the Senior Business Intelligence Officer, the Finance Accountant, the 
Democratic Services Officer and Detective Chief Superintendent Chris Davison.

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors G K Dark, 
J L King and M D Seymour.

Action By
48 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS. 

There were no declarations of interest. 

49 CRIME AND DISORDER UPDATE 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place which provided members with an update on community 
safety partnership work at a County and local level.

There had been fundamental changes in the structure of the 
county community safety partnership arrangements during 2017, 
and these were outlined within the report in addition to an update 
on the local multi-agency work.  The Safer Lincolnshire 
Partnership (SLP) was the name of the multi-agency community 
safety partnership.

Detective Chief Superintendent Chris Davison, the Portfolio 
Holder Communities and Facilities and the Communities Manager 
were in attendance to provide further information and answer the 
Panel’s questions.  The following issues were raised:

 Members had frequently asked for information from the CCTV 
cameras – it was appreciated that this had now been provided 
to the Panel, and it was asked that the report should now go to 

EH 

Page 9

Agenda Item 2b)



- 32 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

Parish Councils.
o Officers confirmed that this information could be 

shared with Parish Councils. 

 PCSOs were a valuable presence in the area. What was the 
financial picture for the remainder of the financial year, and 
was the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) lobbying hard 
for a rural police presence?

o The Detective Chief Superintendent commented 
that the PCSOs role was very valuable – they were 
the eyes and ears of the Police. With regard to the 
general overall financial picture, this was the remit of 
the PCC however it was confirmed that funding was 
secured for the current financial year. He also 
confirmed that the PCC was lobbying for funding for 
rural forces, and was this week speaking to the 
relevant Minister in Central Government on this 
matter. 

 The report suggests some involvement with, for example, 
perpetrators of antisocial behaviour, and their families.  If 
issues were dealt with at an earlier stage, many problems 
could potentially be avoided. 

o Early intervention was the main focus of the 
partnership.   Rather than trying to deal with issues 
at the point of failure, it was important that issues 
were focussed on at an earlier stage.  There needed 
to be more preventative work. 

 Was Operation REPEAT (Reinforcing Elderly Persons 
Education at All Times), referred to within the report, already 
underway?

o Training for practitioners had been undertaken last 
year, and additional training was planned over the 
summer.

 Within the report, begging and vagrancy was identified (along 
with other issues) as an example of anti-social behaviour.  It 
was important that this was not seen purely as anti-social 
behaviour, and that people were given the help and support 
that they may require.

o The Detective Chief Superintendent agreed that 
begging and vagrancy was not purely a policing 
matter.  It was a complex issue, and appropriate 
partnership mechanisations were in place to tackle 
issues.

 Reducing Offending – what was being done across the range 

Page 10



- 33 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

of offenders?
o The Detective Chief Superintendent stated that 

there were very few offenders who only committed 
one type of crime and therefore, dealing with the 
issue by crime type was ineffective.  It was more 
effective to deal with the individual and the 
circumstances around them.

 It had been stated that PCSOs were  the Police’s eyes and 
ears.  The Incidents Summary Analysis appended to the report 
did not appear to bear this out – the number of incidents 
reported by PCSOs seemed very low in comparison to other 
reporters.  

o The Detective Chief Superintendent stated that he 
would pick this up with the local inspector.

 How would consultation with the public of the SLP’s work be 
undertaken? 

o The Detective Chief Superintendent stated that 
communication was important and that historically, 
partnerships had not communicated what they did, 
and the results of what it did in an effective way. It 
was also important to clarify actual crime against the 
perception of actual crime.  The PCC had a specific 
mandate to reflect the views of people in the area.  
Various methods of consultation such as surveys, 
neighbourhood panels and specific events to invite 
the public to contribute could be undertaken.  It was 
necessary to engage people online as well as with 
more traditional events.  

 The report referred to information sharing - what did this 
entail?

o The Detective Chief Superintendent replied that all 
agencies needed to share information in order to 
deal with specific issues. To work in a meaningful 
way, it was necessary that information on 
individuals, and issues surrounding them, could be 
shared.

 Did the partnership involve volunteer organisations, and 
did information sharing also include them?

o The Detective Chief Superintendent advised that the 
Safer Lincolnshire Partnership, at Strategy Board 
level, included all these partners.  Charitable and 
third sectors would need to be engaged going 
forward, but currently those partners with statutory 
duties were the main bodies to engage.

Page 11



- 34 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

 Was the Partnership undertaking any preventative work with 
schools? 

o The Detective Chief Superintendent reported that a 
Joint Diversionary Panel had already been 
developed which looked at each outcome around a 
child to ensure that a child was not being 
unnecessarily criminalised, and that meaning 
activity was being undertaken.

 Two Community Wardens had been secured by the Authority 
through the Controlling Migration Fund.  Had these two roles 
been considered in light of the partnership’s work?

o The Detective Chief Superintendent advised that the 
partnership would share information of initiatives 
and share best practice across the county.

 Younger children needed to understand the repercussions of 
low level anti-social behaviour.  Were there any initiatives to 
address this?

o The Detective Chief Superintendent agreed, and 
advised that there was a Stay Safe partnership 
which delivered these messages. In addition, the 
Joint Diversionary Panel ensured that  activity 
undertaken was meaningful. 

Members requested that a further update report be provided to 
the Panel in six months time, and that the following information be 
included:

 Evidence of publicity around initiatives;
 Progress of the key initiatives; 

AGREED:

a) That the content of the report be noted; and

b) That a further update report be provided to the Panel in six 
months time, to include information on the following:

 Evidence of publicity around the LSP’s initiatives;
 Details of progress in the key initiatives 

EH, CM 

50 SWIMMING POOL AND LEISURE FACILITIES CONTRACT 
TASK GROUP 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place which provided members with an update on the 

Page 12



- 35 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

recommendations of the Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities 
Contract Task Group.  The Task Group had presented its 
recommendations to Cabinet in November 2016, and the Panel 
had since been provided with two progress updates.

The Communities Manager highlighted the following:

 There were still some issues around the timeliness of 
maintenance, and this was still an area of focus;

 There continued to be regular engagement with users;
 Regular inspection visits were undertaken and tracked;
 The Communities Manager was due to meet the Contract 

Manager the next day and would be raising any issues; 
 Attendance figures were down, due to maintenance issues – 

this would be addressed;
 Future leisure options (update required, as detailed in 

recommendations at Appendix A) – members were advised 
that a short term leisure contract, to run from March 2019, was 
being sought.  Invitations to tender would be sent in May 2018, 
reviewed in August 2018 and members would be updated 
November 2018.

The Panel considered the information and the following issues 
were raised:

 The drop in attendance was disappointing.  The Panel would 
be looking at future update reports to monitor this.

 Officers had stated that the new contract was due to 
commence 1 March 2019, for a five year term, with the option 
of a two year extension.  Members had not been aware of the 
extension option.

o Officers responded that the initial five year 
management contract was to allow the Authority to 
progress to the next stage with regard to future 
leisure provision.  The optional two years extension 
would provide some leeway if required however, 
officers were confident that the five years should be 
sufficient and the extension would not be required.

 Customer feedback information was given within the report – 
how did this compare to last quarter?

o Officers were unable to provide the information but 
advised that it would be included in the future.

 Members responded that customer feedback for previous 
periods should be included in future reports for comparison 
purposes.

EH 

Page 13



- 36 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

 In response to a question regarding the GP Referral 
Programme, officers clarified that this had been successful 
and was centred around health issues such as back care and 
obesity.  The programme had previously been funded through 
LCC Public Health but was now run at the provider’s own cost.

 With regard to the full boiler replacement in 2018, officers 
clarified that replacement parts were the responsibility of 
SHDC and repairs were the responsibility of 1Life.

 Members questioned whether a number of unscheduled visits 
per month could be undertaken rather than pre-announced 
visits.

o Officers responded that weekly inspections were 
being undertaken which had been beneficial in 
keeping standards up.  There was no fixed time or 
pre-warning of these visits.  The number of visits 
could potentially reduce to a couple of visits per 
month.

 Members responded that the number of visits could be 
determined by the service but they would not wish for control 
to be relaxed.  

It was requested that the report to the next meeting address 
visitor numbers and complaints – both positive and negative 
comments should be considered, and the negative comments 
understood.  

AGREED:

a) That the content of the report be noted; and

b) That a further update report be considered in six months time, 
addressing the issues raised by the Panel.

(The Portfolio Holder Communities and Facilities, the 
Communities Manager and the Detective Chief Superintendent 
left the meeting following discussion of this item). 

EH, CM 

51 REVIEW OF HOUSING ALLOCATIONS POLICY 

With the agreement of the Chairman, this item was withdrawn 
from the agenda, to be discussed at the next Panel meeting. 

MC 

52 RE-LETTING OF VOID PROPERTIES TASK GROUP 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place which presented an update on the current situation relating 

Page 14



- 37 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

to void properties.  A Task Group looking at the re-letting of void 
properties had presented its recommendations to the Cabinet on 
25 July 2017, where it had been agreed these recommendations 
be incorporated within the Place Review.

At the Panel’s last meeting, members had considered housing 
voids as part of the Quarter 3 2017-18 Performance Overview 
Report.  Voids had been highlighted as an area for improvement, 
members were unhappy with this performance and had requested 
that the issue come forward to this meeting to be considered 
alongside performance against the Task Group’s 
recommendations.

Officers advised that the report detailed progress made to date 
however, there was still work to be done.  Members considered 
the report and the following issues were raised:

 What work was still to be done?
o Members were advised that there were issues 

around bringing properties back into use, and this 
linked to the Allocations Policy.  Another issue was 
how processes and policies around areas such as 
recharges were managed, and how tenants were 
advised of their responsibilities.  Work was being 
undertaken on addressing these areas, and a new 
team was taking some of these forward.  Further 
information would be provided in reports that would 
be brought to the Panel in July.

 Councillors that had been part of the Re-Letting of Void 
Properties Task Group were disappointed with progress. The 
Task Group had submitted its Final Report and 
recommendations in July 2017, and it was felt that there was 
no great improvement in performance.  Letting times, when 
compared to the same quarter last year, appeared to be 
worsening.

o Officers responded that targets were being missed, 
but only slightly.  A significant number of properties 
had been let during this time, and these were not 
failing.  The Authority was delivering properties to 
tenants in need, and there were some successes.    

 Members responded that the entire process appeared to be 
taking longer than the same period the previous year.  

 The tenancy and recharge polices were currently under review 
– were the current policies satisfactory and when would the 
reviewed ones be in place.

o Officers responded that the reviews were almost 

Page 15



- 38 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

complete, and that the recharge policy was being 
looked at again. 

 Members felt that the current performance was not 
encouraging and that significant improvement was required in 
the near future, given that the Voids Task Group had 
concluded its work some time ago.  Housing allocations and 
voids were interrelated issues interrelated and an update on 
both was therefore requested at next meeting. 

o Officers responded that the report to the next 
meeting would provide more context to the current 
situation.

AGREED:

a) That the report of the Executive Director Place be noted;  
and

b) That a further update report on housing allocations and 
void properties be provided to the next meeting of the 
Panel, to provide information on performance and context 
on the background relating to these issues.

(The Portfolio Holder Housing and Health and the Executive 
Manager People and Public Protection left the meeting following 
discussion of this meeting.)   

PS, CM 

53 MINUTES 

AGREED:

a) The minutes of the meeting of the Joint Performance 
Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel held on 25 
January 2018 were signed by the Chairman as a correct 
record;

b) The minutes of the meeting of the Performance Monitoring 
Panel held on 6 February 2018 were signed by the Chairman 
as a correct record.

c) That officers liaise with the Chairman of the Panel regarding 
any outstanding issues. 

54 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6 

There were no questions asked under Standing Order 6. 

55 TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

Page 16



- 39 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

There were no responses of the Cabinet to consider. 

56 ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT 
PANEL. 

There were no items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 

57 KEY DECISION PLAN 

Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 23 
April 2018.

AGREED:

That the Key Decision Plan issued on 23 April 2018 be noted. 

58 QUARTER 4 2017-18 PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director, 
Strategy and Governance which provided an update on Council 
performance for the period 1 January 2018 to 31 March 2018.

Quarter 4 saw performance drop slightly in comparison to Quarter 
3.  Performance was rated as ‘moderate’ with 10 indicators being 
green (48%) which indicated good performance.  There were 4 
(14%) amber indicators and 8 red indicators (38%); highlighting 
lower than expected performance.  There were 6 indicators which 
were classified as data only – this meant that they were monitored 
without requiring a target.

In discussing the report, the following key points emerged:

 With regard to sickness reporting, it was suggested that 
changes be made to make it easier to show the proportion of 
days lots to the Authority.

 Staff turnover and exit information – members asked if a 
summary of exit surveys could be provided in future reporting.

o Officers would liaise with Human Resources in order 
to provide as much detail as possible, and this 
would be included within the next update report.

AGREED:

That the report be noted.

(The Senior Business Intelligence Officer left the meeting 

CP 

Page 17



- 40 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

following discussion of the above item). 

59 SECTION 106 MONIES 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place which provided information on how Section 106 monies 
were constructed, negotiated and monitored, as requested by the 
Panel at its meeting in August 2017.

The report provided an explanation of what S106 agreements 
were, the circumstances under which they were appropriate, the 
implications of the emerging Local Plan policy framework, and the 
outcomes of the assurance review undertaken in December 2017.  
The report also provided information relating to ongoing 
workstreams, these including a comprehensive review of all S106 
agreements, the monitoring of trigger points (both financial and 
non-financial), and the identification of responsible officers.

Officers emphasised that as S106 agreements were concluded at 
the time permission was granted, there was often a considerable 
time lapse between that point and the commencement or 
conclusion of development.  This was particularly pertinent in 
relation to the larger schemes which could take a number of years 
to commence.  Once commenced, the larger schemes were 
generally constructed over a protracted time frame.  There was 
therefore a need to ensure that the process of monitoring S106 
agreements was robust and that it focussed on monitoring both 
on-site commencement and appropriate trigger points.  Officers 
undertook to provide a further report to the Panel in six months 
time, this addressing the issues identified above and providing a 
comprehensive oversight of S106 agreements currently in place 
across the District.

The Panel considered the information provided, and the following 
issues were raised: 

 Had any monies not been spent within the appropriate time 
period of any S106 agreements, and if so, had the monies 
gone back to the developer?

o Officers confirmed that no S106 monies had been 
returned.

 Forward planning with regard to spend of S106 monies (rather 
than waiting until monies were received) and how it could be 
used effectively was necessary e.g. could S106 monies be 
used to contribute to an improved bus service in Spalding?  

o Officers responded that the monies associated with 
any particular agreement could only be utilised in 

Page 18



- 41 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

connection with the requirement of the agreement 
itself, unless agreed otherwise by the developer.  
Amendments would generally require a formal 
amendment to the agreement itself.  In relation to 
the bus provision associated with the ongoing 
Holland Park development, the triggers for transport 
provision had been determined at the time the 
application was approved in direct consultation with 
the County Council.

 The Authority should liaise with Parish Councils before 
allocating open space, as they were often the bodies that 
maintained it and knew where it was most needed.

o Officers responded that open space provision 
negotiated in connection with any development 
scheme was part and parcel of the application 
process.  The Parish Councils were directly involved 
in this consultative process.  In cases where open 
space provision was made off-site, officers would 
liaise with both the applicant and/or developer, 
together with the Parish Council to ensure that 
appropriate provision was made – and that this 
included appropriate arrangements for ongoing 
maintenance.

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That a further report be submitted to the Panel in six months 
time providing information on the following areas:

 An overview of existing S106 agreements;
 An explanation of the main trigger points;
 The identification of an officer responsible for monitoring 

the terms of the agreement, particularly the 
commencement of works;

 The mechanism for ensuring that monies associated with 
S106 agreements were secured in accordance with the 
terms of the agreement;

 The identification of any officer responsible for ensuring 
that financial contributions were spent accordingly and 
within prescribed timescales;

 The approach taken to ensuring members were regularly 
updated on S106 matters. 

RF, PJ, CM 

60 EMERGENCY RESPONSE 

Page 19



- 42 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Place which provided information on how the Authority would 
respond in an emergency situation.

Under the Civil Contingencies Act (CCA) 2004, South Holland 
District Council, as a Category 1 responder, had a duty to have 
plans in place to respond to and support an emergency, whilst at 
the same time maintaining its essential services to the local 
community.  The Authority had a document entitled ‘The Place – 
Emergency Response and Business Continuity Plan – 2017/18’ 
which detailed the process of how it would react in an emergency.

The Panel considered the information detailed within the report, 
and the following issues arose:

 The success of the Authority’s response depended upon the 
first contact – when reported, would there be a suitably 
qualified  individual available to respond to the call?  

o Officers advised that there would be, that there was 
24 hour telephone coverage, and that this was 
staffed on a rota basis.  

 Members responded that the Authority’s out of hours number 
was not as good as it should be – would the emergency 
response line be better?

o Officers advised that there had been some initial 
problems when the LCC line had been set up 
however, these had now been resolved however, if 
there were any issues, officers at South Holland 
would be advised of any reported emergency..  

 Members asked how the public could be made aware of what 
number to call in the event of any emergency.

o If an individual rang the Council telephone number, 
they would hear a message with the Emergency 
Response contact number.  The telephone number 
was also advertised on the entrance doors to the 
Council.  Then a call was answered, the issue would 
be diverted to the correct body.

 Members asked if the processes put in place would still work, 
as the Authority was opting out of county wide service level 
agreement.  

o Officers responded that the Authority was not on its 
own, as it was still a member of the Lincolnshire 
Resilience Forum.  

 Was there a direct role for the local community as part of the 
emergency plan? 

Page 20



- 43 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

o Individuals could join local action group, with their 
views being fed back.  The Emergency Planning 
Officer would make contact with the groups and 
support them where they could.  

 Members responded that this needed to happen soon.  There 
were many people willing to get involved however, due to lack 
of information, this interest was waning.  In addition, some 
areas did not have a local action group. 

 The Portfolio Holder Place advised that the main role of the 
Emergency Planning Officer would initially be to ensure that 
the Authority had the resilience that it had been lacking. 
Lincolnshire County Council was the primary emergency 
authority, and even though South Holland District Council had 
withdrawn from the SLA, it would still covered by LCC as it 
was the County Council’s statutory duty.  Community groups 
would also be supported, with their position being clarified.

Members requested that Terms of Reference be clarified, that a 
further report be presented to the Panel once this had been 
resolved, and that officers contact voluntary groups. 

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That officer provide a further report to the Panel once Terms of 
Reference with regard to Emergency Planning had been 
clarified, and that officers contact local action groups.

(The Portfolio Holder Place, the Communities Manager, the 
Building Consultancy Manager and the Emergency Planning 
Officer left the meeting following discussion of this item). 

ES, KB, CB 

61 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation, which provided an update on Economic 
Development over the last six months.

In discussing the report, the following key points arose;

 It was important to attract new businesses, and also to 
appreciate existing ones.

o Officers responded that the Open for Business 
agenda was being brought forward, demonstrating 
the Council’s desire to speak to businesses and 
gain feedback.

Page 21



- 44 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

 An event involving schools was being considered for later in 
the year, with the aim of working towards addressing the skills 
shortage.

 Members asked whether there had been any discussions with 
regard to the railway station, and the new franchise?

o To date, this had not taken place, as there could be 
no meaningful  conversation until it was known who 
the franchise would be awarded to.  The Authority 
needed to be prepared for when this did happen.

 Members asked whether there had been any feedback from 
businesses with regard to traffic problems, and whether any of 
them had been affected.  

o Although officers knew of the traffic problems, they 
were not aware of any feedback from businesses.  A 
traffic survey was currently underway, and it was 
important for the Authority to engage with Highways 
on the results of this.

 Members commented that the following points should be 
made with regard to road improvements in the area: 1) That 
the A16 was important as it connected the area and the food 
industries; and 2) Although the A17 carried a large amount of 
traffic out of the district, it was a major distributor of local 
produce around the country.   

o Officers responded that the LEPP and LCC were 
regularly lobbied with regard to infrastructure issues.

 Members requested that a further update report be provided in 
six months time to advise of progress in the intervening period.

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That a further update report be presented to the Panel in six 
months time. 

NB, CM 

62 COMMERCIALISATION 

The Executive Director Commercialisation provided the Panel 
with a presentation on the Council’s Delivery Programme, and 
how Commercialisation opportunities were being considered by 
the Delivery Unit.

Following the presentation, the following issues were raised:

Page 22



- 45 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

 Was the Authority on target to achieve the financial income 
identified from  commercialisation?

o Yes, this was on target and was likely to exceed 
predictions due to the Crease Drove and DWP 
projects not being included in the original forecasts. 

 What was the situation with regard to staff resourcing of 
commercialisation.  Historically, this had been an issue – had 
this now been overcome?

o Recruiting was currently underway for a HRA team 
to support the HRA Programme, and a large number 
of permanent staff were now in previously interim 
posts. There was still a need for some specialist 
help, but the Authority was now in a better position 
with regard to the resourcing of commercialisation.  
As the initiative was accelerated in the future, there 
may be a need to increase resource, and members 
would be updated if this was to happen. 

 Members commented that the presentation provided broad 
information which was helpful however, the Panel may want to 
look at particular issues in more detail.

o Officers responded that if the Panel had any 
particular projects it wished to scrutinise in more 
depth, that relevant officers be advised.

 The Chairman requested that as individual issues emerged as 
potential projects, that the Panel be advised in order that it 
could consider them in more detail if required.

AGREED:

a) That the presentation be noted; and

b) That as potential projects arose, officers advise the Panel in 
order that it could consider if it wished to scrutinise them in 
more detail. 

RH, MH, 
CM 

63 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Work Programme consisted 
of three separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the 
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration, and the second setting out the Task Groups that 
had been identified by the Panel.

Page 23



- 46 -

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 2 
May 2018

AGREED:

That the Work Programme report provided by the Executive 
Manager Governance be noted. 

64 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 
URGENT 

There were no urgent items. 

(The meeting ended at 9.00 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 24



1

KEY DECISION PLAN Issued – 20 July 2018

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to: 

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.  

Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

2

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

New sewerage 
maintenance 
contract for 
council housing 
stock

To award new sewerage maintenance 
contract for the housing stock.

Portfolio Holder for 
Housing Landlord, 
Housing Manager.

Informal meetings and 
discussions.

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Sep 
2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Building 
Materials 
Contract

To award a contract. Portfolio Holder for 
Housing. 

Meetings and discussions. 

Housing Landlord 
Manager Before 30 Oct 
2018

P
age 26



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

3

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Housing and 
Health

CSU Electrical 
Materials Supply 
Contract (EMSC) 
2017 - 2021

To award the EMSC to the successful 
supplier from the outcome of the 
procurement process Meetings and discussions

Officer Decisions Before 
30 Oct 2018

Portfolio Holder 
for Growth and 
Commercialisatio
n

Spalding 
Western Relief 
Road / Northern 
Spalding SUE - 
Acceptance of 
Housing 
Infrastructure 
Fund

To formally consider the acceptance of 
HIF funding from Homes England, 
alongside consideration and approval 
of a funding agreement.

Spalding 
Western Relief 
Road / Northern 
Spalding SUE - 
Acceptance of 
Housing 
Infrastructure 
Fund

South Holland District 
Council 28 Nov 2018

P
age 27



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

4

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION
Portfolio Holder 
for Place

Lincolnshire 
Waste 
Partnership - 
Joint Municipal 
Waste 
Management 
Strategy

To consider the adoption of the Joint 
Municipal Waste Management 
Strategy

Lincolnshire 
Waste 
Partnership - 
Joint Municipal 
Waste 
Management 
Strategy

Cabinet 20 Nov 2018

*Cabinet Membership
The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader)
Councillor T Carter (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C Johnson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

P
age 28



PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION

5

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:

Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764451 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

P
age 29

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director, Strategy and Governance – Maxine O’Mahony

To: Performance Monitoring Panel, 31st July 2018 and Cabinet, 11th 
September 2018

Author: Charlotte Paine – Senior Business Intelligence Officer

Subject: Performance Overview Report – Quarter 1 2018/19

Purpose: To provide an update on Council performance for the period 1 April 
2018 to 30  June 2018

Recommendation(s): 

1)  To note the content of the report

1.0 BACKGROUND

The Quarter 1 2017/18 Performance Report (Appendix A) aims to provide Members 
and residents with information about how the Council is delivering its services and 
how it is progressing against its Corporate Priorities.  The covering report highlights 
in further detail some of the indicators within the performance report.

Areas where performance has improved are brought to Members’ attention, as are 
areas of concern where performance is below expected levels or is considered to be 
worsening.

1.0 Key Performance Indicators

Quarter 1 saw performance improve slightly in comparison to quarter 4. Performance 
is rated as ‘fair’ with 12 indicators being green (60%) which indicates good 
performance. There are 2 (10%) amber indicators and 6 red indicators (30%); 
highlighting lower than expected performance. There are 8 indicators which are 
classified as data only; this means that they are monitored without requiring a target.

Q1
2015/16

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1
2016/17

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1
2017/18

Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1
2018/19

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Red Amber Green

Performance Indicator Status FY 2017/18

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



1.2 New Indicators for 2018/19

The performance report of quarter 1 proposes new indicators to the panel for the 
monitoring of performance this year. The rationale behind the changes is to ensure 
that the performance being reported in aligned with the refreshed corporate plan of 
2018/19.

The indicators have been selected to ensure that they represent performance across 
the council in line with the critical activities agreed for delivery in this year’s plan. 
Appendix B provides a list of the indicators that have been added, removed or kept 
with the rationale explaining the links to the corporate plan.

It is expected that the new list will give members greater assurance of the delivery of 
the plan and has been done in consultation with the chair and vice chair of PMP.

1.3 Areas of Success

Income Generated by EHT&C
The addition of these indicators was to ensure that the Council is delivering on its 
commercial aim. EHT&C is a commercial arm of the Public Protection team providing 
services at a cost to businesses. Both indicators are being reported above target 
currently highlighting the good work of the team in delivering on their business case 
and generating an income for the Council.

Planning Applications
The planning indicators have been split to understand the performance of the major 
and non-major applications as they have differing targets and timescales. 
Performance of both indicators is reported above target with decisions made within 
agreed timescales. 

Housing Benefit LA error Rate
The LA Error rate currently sits at 0.23% which is below the level of error which could 
possibly incur financial penalty (above 0.48%). This continues on from the good work 
of the previous year which saw the LA Error at its lowest amount.

Business Rate In Year Collection
The amount of money collected for business rates at the beginning of the year is 
above target which continues the good performance of the previous year

1.4 Areas for Improvement

The following areas are either not achieving their target or are experiencing a 
significant decline in performance:

Freedom of Information Requests 
The number of FOI requests that were responded to within the statutory 20 day 
timescale is below target at 67%. This follows an increase in more complex requests 

Page 32



being received which are taking longer to collate. The internal performance audit and 
risk board is monitoring this closely and identifying areas that have high volumes of 
requests to ensure appropriate support is provided and suggest where information 
can be made available online to reduce the number of requests received.

Missed Waste Collection
The first quarter of the year includes a higher proportion of reported missed 
collections. The quarter includes bank holidays which can have an impact on when 
residents present their waste and report missed bins.

Whilst this figure currently sits at 39, which is above target, please note that there 
were over 1 million collections in the period, of which 99.99% were completed as 
scheduled. 

Staff Turnover
Staff turnover for quarter 1 is significantly reduced compared to the previous quarter, 
whilst on a par with the same period in the previous year. In this quarter there were 9 
leavers who either resigned, were made redundant or passed away in service. 
Reasons for staff turnover are monitored to ensure that any areas for concern are 
addressed, where there are patterns in resignations identified HR will be analysing 
and carrying out investigations where issues may be prevalent and this will be raised 
to PMP where required. It is not possible to give further detail due to the low number 
of leavers in the period.

Sickness
Overall working days lost to sickness per FTE has reduced from the previous quarter 
and is reported as 2.75 per FTE for Q1. 90% of sickness instances in the quarter 
were reported in the Place directorate where there is a higher proportion of staff and 
manual, customer focused workers. 
HR are currently undertaking a benchmarking exercise to understand other local 
authority sickness rates and what can be learnt from other authorities.
Quarter 1 continues to see a high number of long term sickness with 85% of the days 
lost being the result of long term sickness. HR are currently working to identify trends 
but at this stage no areas have been identified. HR continue to work with services to 
manage long term sickness and all current long term sickness cases are being case 
managed with a HR business partner actively working with service managers to 
ensure effective communication, occupational health referrals where necessary, 
along with any other suitable interventions in order to ensure the employee can 
return to work as soon as possible.

Housing Voids
Following the service review and new structure in the housing team, there have been 
a number of proposed changes considered to improve service delivery, including how 
voids are dealt with. This has highlighted key areas which need to be further 
investigated and scoped for improvement. The housing service have advised that 
during this period it is likely that the reported figures will continue to be below target 
whilst they analyse the data and working procedures to consider improvement 
opportunities. The housing service will be in attendance at Performance Monitoring 
Panel in September in order to discuss this with members and give assurances of the 
work under way.

Page 33



Empty Properties and New Homes Delivered
There are a further 2 new indicators that are reported under target this quarter. The 
new homes delivered indicator is targeted to the local plan delivery and continues to 
be a challenge to deliver the target. However, there were 35 homes delivered in the 
quarter in Crowland, Pinchbeck, Holbeach and Cowbit.
Empty properties brought back into use in the quarter was not delivered, however the 
service is working to understand the appropriate level of resource needed to reach 
the target and unlock new homes bonus income.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Members are asked to consider the information contained within the report.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 Report for consideration, in order to fulfil the Performance Monitoring Panel’s remit.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Council’s performance is properly scrutinised.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

 The report is made within the terms of reference of the Performance Monitoring 
Panel.

5.2 Corporate Priorities
The report presents progress monitoring of performance of the corporate priorities.

5.3 Financial
The report contains information on Council’s performance which does convey some 
information relating to financial matters.

5.4 Reputation
Performance issues can cause some reputational consequence.  It is the purpose 
of this report to highlight performance issues at an early stage.

5.5 Risk Management
Performance issues may be subject to risk management measures to protect 
Council interests.

5.6 Staffing
The report contains information relating to staffing issues.

Page 34



6.0     WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED 

6.1     No Wards or Communities are affected 

7.0     ACRONYMS 

PMP – Performance Monitoring Panel
LA – Local Authority

Background papers:- See The Committee Report Guide

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Charlotte Paine – Senior Business Intelligence Officer
Telephone Number: 01362 656347
Email: charlotte.paine@breckland-sholland.gov.uk 

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Charlotte Paine – Senior Business Intelligence Officer

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A 
Appendix B

Quarter 1 Performance Report
Proposed New Indicators

Page 35

file:///C:/Users/CharlottePaine/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
file:///C:/Users/CharlottePaine/Democratic%20Services/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:greg.pearson@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

2018/19 Q1 SHDC PMP Report

Generated on: 18 July 2018

         

         

Indicator Gross income generated by EHT&C Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 N/A N/A £48,000.00

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

The amount of gross 
income generated by the 
Environmental Health, 
Training and consultancy 
commercial trading arm

 

£26,250.00
 

Higher is better as we look to generate more 
income from our environmental health training 
and consultancy department

Slightly better income first quarter due to Primary Authority income, 
which will not recur again in year so profiling of the budget is 
required and will be looked at for the next quarter

     

 

   

         

P
age 37



2

Indicator Net Income generated by EHT&C (after expenditure) Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 N/A N/A £43,935.00

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

The amount of net income 
(surplus after expenditure) 
generated by the 
Environmental Health, 
Training and consultancy 
commercial trading arm 

 

£29,500.00
 

Higher is better as we look to generate more 
income from our environmental health training 
and consultancy department

Estimated as actual figures not currently available.
£48k invoiced and orders
Costs £4,065

Indicator Time to process DFG Applications Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 N/A N/A 192.6

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Overall time from 
appointment to 
completion. 

 

Data Only 
 

Lower is better as we look to process 
applications in the shortest time possible

The service have commenced analysis of this data and will continue 
to monitor to ensure that the applications are dealt with in a timely 
manner 

P
age 38



3

Indicator % of complaints responded to within agreed timescales Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Complaints in 
Timescale

Complaints Responded 
To

Value

Q1 2017/18 29 31 94%

Current Performance

Complaints in 
Timescale

Complaints Responded 
To

Value

Q1 2018/19 67 73 92%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

the percentage of the 
complaints that were 
responded to within the 
period, that were 
responded to within the 
agreed timescales (15 day 
stage 1, 20 days stage 2)

 
80%

 
 Higher is better as we look to respond to as 
many as possible in the agreed timescale

Despite an increase in the number of complaints recorded, the 
performance has remained above target

Indicator % of FOI requests responded to within time limit Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number responded in 
time

Number responded to Value

Q1 2017/18 96 125 77%

Current Performance

Number responded in 
time

Number responded to Value

Q1 2018/19 81 121 67%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Of the FOI's responded to 
in the month, the 
percentage of ones that 
were responded to within 
the statutory 20 day 
timescale

 
100%

 
Higher is better as we aim to respond to all 
our FOI requests within the statutory timescale

Performance has seen a dip since the same point last year, this is 
result of the complexity of the requests coming in.

P
age 39



4

Indicator % of Calls Abandoned Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Calls Abandoned Calls Received Value

Q1 2017/18 2,887 28,444 10.15%

Current Performance

Calls Abandoned Calls Received Value

Q1 2018/19 2,975 31,141 9.55%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of calls that are 
abandoned (call 
terminated prior to 
answering), excluding 
those abandoned within 5 
seconds. 
 
This is a combined 
measure across Customer 
Contact, Revenues and 
Benefits calls 

 
 Data Only

 
A lower % is better as we look to answer more 
calls

Despite an increase in the number of calls, the performance has 
increased from the same time the previous year

Indicator % of household waste recycled or composted Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 2638.86 tonnes 7869.64 tonnes 33.5%

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 2728.56 tonnes 8036.68 tonnes 33.92%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of household waste 
which has been recycled 
and composted (includes 
garden waste) against all 
the household waste 
collected

 

32.17%
 

A higher % is better as we look to recycle or 
compost more waste

Performance has remained the same for recycling whilst there has 
been an increase in the tonnage of garden waste collected compared 
to last year

         

P
age 40



5

         

Indicator Missed Waste Collection Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of missed 
collections

Per 100,000 collection 
figure

Value

Q1 2017/18 335 10.185 33

Current Performance

Number of missed 
collections

Per 100,000 collection 
figure

Value

Q1 2018/19 394 10.185 39

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of missed 
collections per 100,000 
people

 

33

 

A lower number is better as we look to ensure 
fewer waste collections are missed

The period saw a number of bank holidays which often impact upon 
the collection days and can cause an increase in reported missed 
collections. Performance remains over 99% in regards to collections 
made

Indicator Commercial Property Occupancy Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of units let Total number of units Value

Q1 2017/18 50 50 100%

Current Performance

Number of units let Total number of units Value

Q1 2018/19 49 50 98%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Occupancy levels of the 
council's industrial units 

 90%  A higher number is better as we look to rent Performance remains good with all but 1 of the units currently let

P
age 41



6

out as many council owned industrial units as 
possible

         

         

Indicator Staff turnover % Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of leavers in 
period

Total number of staff 
in period

Value

Q1 2017/18 9 244 3.69%

Current Performance

Number of leavers in 
period

Total number of staff 
in period

Value

Q1 2018/19 9 225 3.56%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% of total leavers against 
total number of staff 
employed in period 
(includes involuntary 
leavers) 
 
Target is 10% which has 
been benchmarked 

 

0.83%

 

Lower is better as we look to retain staff The turnover of staff remains the same as last year with leavers’ 
reasons including resignations and redundancies. Due to low figures, 
we are unable to provide a further breakdown in numbers. 

         

P
age 42



7

         

Indicator Working Days Lost to Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of days lost Number of FTE Value

Q1 2017/18 606.18 225.75 2.69

Current Performance

Number of days lost Number of FTE Value

Q1 2018/19 550.08 201.97 2.75

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total number of working 
days lost per Full Time 
Equivalent.
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
sickness and dividing it by 
the number of full time 
equivalent staff in the 
period

 

2.5
 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness 

There were 64 instances of sickness in the quarter which broke down 
into 32 for both long and short term sickness. Performance per FTE 
remains similar to last year whilst days lost has reduced by over 50.

Indicator Working Days Lost to Long Term Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of days lost - 
long term

Number of FTE Value

Q1 2017/18 479.58 225.75 2.12

Current Performance

Number of days lost - 
long term

Number of FTE Value

Q1 2018/19 467.36 600.15 0.78

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of working days 
lost per Full Time 
Equivalent for long term 
sickness. 
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
long term sickness and 
dividing it by the number 
of full time equivalent staff 
in the period 

 
Data Only 

 
Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness 

There were 32 instances of long term sickness in the quarter with 
appropriate action taken by management and HR where required

P
age 43



8

         

         

Indicator Working Days Lost to Short Term Sickness per FTE Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Number of days lost - 
short term

Number of FTE Value

Q1 2017/18 126.6 225.75 0.56

Current Performance

Number of days lost - 
short term

Number of FTE Value

Q1 2018/19 82.72 600.15 0.14

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of working days 
lost per Full Time 
Equivalent for short term 
sickness. 
This is calculated by taking 
the number of days lost to 
long term sickness and 
dividing it by the number 
of full time equivalent staff 
in the period 

 
 Data Only

 
Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
amount of working time lost to sickness 

There were 32 instances of short term sickness in the quarter with 
appropriate action taken by management and HR where required

         

     

 

   

P
age 44



9

Indicator Housing re-let (void) time (total ave. key to key) All Tenures Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Total # days void Total # properties void Value

Q1 2017/18 2,298 61 38 days

Current Performance

Total # days void Total # properties void Value

Q1 2018/19 2,734 71 39 days

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total time in days from 
keys in to keys out - 
including major works for 
all tenures (General Needs 
and Sheltered Housing) 
This is calculated by total 
number of days properties 
remain vacant divided by 
the number or properties 
vacant in the period 

 

28 days
 

Lower is better as we look to reduce the 
number of days vacant and therefore not 
receiving rent payments 

Work continues to consider the process for the voids and ensure the 
most effective in place with a further report due to PMP in September

Indicator Cases Prevented from Homelessness per 1,000 households Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A 1.9

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 N/A N/A N/A

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

P1E Return - Prevention 
and Relieving of 
Homelessness 
Number of potentially 
homeless cases diverted 
from homelessness per 
1,000 households 

 

 

 

This is not a targeted measure. The number 
does not reflect % of cases prevented from 
homelessness and therefore will fluctuate 
dependent upon demand to the service. 

Unfortunately the requirement to update systems in line with the 
Homelessness Reduction Act has meant the figure is not currently 
reportable. It will be made available by Q2

P
age 45



10

Indicator Empty Properties - Back In Use Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A 18

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 N/A N/A 0

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of empty 
properties brought back 
into use through 
intervention by the council

 
18.75

 
Higher is better as we look to bring as many 
empty homes back into use as possible

Work is underway to ensure the appropriate resource is made 
available to bring as many empty homes back into use as possible.

         

         

Indicator Businesses Assisted to Develop or Grow via Grants4Growth Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A 19

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 N/A N/A 50

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of existing 
businesses assisted to 
develop or grow through 
Economic Development 
support - Grants for 
Growth 

 

8
 

Higher is better as we look to help more 
businesses

Grants for Growth target is to assist at least 170 businesses over the 
life of the project with the reported figure also including Economic 
Development and Inward investment related visits

P
age 46



11

Indicator Number of Grants Awarded via Grants4Growth Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A 17

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 N/A N/A 21

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Total number of grants 
that are awarded - grants 
for growth 

 
4.33

 
 Higher is better as we look to help more 
businesses

Continue to monitor eligibility of businesses and anticipate a similar 
number of grants in the remaining 7/8 months of the project

Indicator Local Unemployment Levels Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A 660

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 N/A N/A 650

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Nationally reported figures 
regarding the local 
unemployment for South 
Holland. This is a data 
measure to provide 
context on the health of 
the district in regards to 
employment 

 

Data Only 
 

Lower is better as we look to have more of our 
residents in work

The quarter saw an initial increase in April before levelling at current 
rate. This equates to 1.2% of SH residents and compares to 1.8% 
regionally and 2.2% nationally

         

P
age 47



12

         

Indicator % of non-major applications determined within 8 weeks or agreed extension Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Minor Applications in 
Time

Total Minor Apps 
Decided

Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A N/A

Current Performance

Minor Applications in 
Time

Total Minor Apps 
Decided

Value

Q1 2018/19 181 222 81.53%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

This PI measures the % of 
non-major applications 
that have been determined 
within 8 weeks or agreed 
extension, this is in line 
with national 
requirements.

 

70%

 

We look to achieve the highest amount 
possible as we aim to determine all non-major 
planning applications within 8 weeks or agreed 
extension as set out with national 
requirements

Performance is above target with applications being determined 
within the agreed timescale

     

 
 

  

         

P
age 48



13

Indicator % of Major applications determined within 13 weeks or agreed extension Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

# major apps detrm in 
13 or extn

# major applications 
determined

Value

Q1 2017/18 16 17 94.12%

Current Performance

# major apps detrm in 
13 or extn

# major applications 
determined

Value

Q1 2018/19 12 13 92.31%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

% determined within 13 
weeks (or with agreed 
extension or PPA) 

 

60%
 

Higher is better as we aim to determine all 
major applications within 13 weeks or the 
agreed extension

Significantly above target, reflecting effective use of extensions of 
time on major applications, where S106 agreements are often 
required.

Indicator Housing Benefit LA Error Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expend

Value

Q1 2017/18 6,291.29 4,203,348.61 0.15%

Current Performance

Error expenditure Total housing benefit 
expend

Value

Q1 2018/19 9,100.88 3,980,809.5 0.23%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Local Authority error in 
Housing Benefit 
overpayment 
Amount of benefits 
overpaid divided by 
benefits paid (% of overall 
expenditure) 

 0.42%  Lower is better as we look to minimise the Performance within threshold to receive 100% subsidy.

P
age 49



14

amount of money paid in error and reduce the 
risk of financial penalty (which occurs above 
0.48%) 

         

         

Indicator Business Rate In Year Collection Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q1 2017/18 8,107,286.34 26,458,218.98 30.64%

Current Performance

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q1 2018/19 8,341,977.56 27,027,333.11 30.86%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Amount of Business Rates 
collected in the year 
against the total 
collectable debit 

 
30%

 
Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the business rates debit as possible 

Collection at the beginning of the year is on target at slightly above 
last years

         

     

 

   

P
age 50



15

Indicator Council Tax In Year Collection Rate Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q1 2017/18 13,058,392.31 43,006,805.21 30.36%

Current Performance

In year collection 
amount

Total collectable debit Value

Q1 2018/19 13,852,322.38 45,911,851.38 30.17%

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Amount of Council Tax 
collected in the year 
against the total 
collectable debit 

 

30.35%

 

Higher is better as we look to collect as much 
of the Council Tax debit as possible 

Currently 0.18% behind target. Recovery action is being taken in line 
with our robust recovery timetable. The first Court hearing for those 
in default with their current year's Council Tax was in June and we are 
now in the process of taking the appropriate enforcement action on 
the Liability Orders obtained. We recognise that the impact of Local 
Council Tax Support and the role out of Universal Credit within the 
district is likely to have an adverse impact on collection but this will 
be monitored closely over the year.  We anticipate that the end of 
year performance will be in line with previous year's performance.

     

 

 

 

 

         

P
age 51



16

Indicator New Homes Delivered Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A 21

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 N/A N/A 35

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

The number of new homes 
delivered by the council 
(acquired directly, built 
directly or enabled by the 
authority from direct 
intervention)

 

102
 

Higher is better as we look to deliver more 
new homes

The first quarter has seen 28 market properties enabled and 7 
affordable rent properties across the district including in Holbeach, 
Crowland and Cubit 

Indicator % of due rent collected on Welland homes properties Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Due rent actually 
collected

Due rent to be 
collected

Value

Q1 2017/18 11,075 11,075 100

Current Performance

Due rent actually 
collected

Due rent to be 
collected

Value

Q1 2018/19 9,434.8 10,144.7 93

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

The percentage of rent 
collected from maximum 
possible rent to be 
collected

 
95

 
A higher % is better as we look to collect as 
much of the due rent as possible

The reduction is due to a late rent payment which is being closely 
monitored.

P
age 52



17

Indicator New homes delivered by SHDC through Welland Homes Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A 0

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 N/A N/A 0

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of new homes 
delivered via Welland 
Homes in the period

 

 5
 

Higher is better as we look to deliver more 
homes via Welland homes

5 coming in pipeline for November/December in Long Sutton with 
and additional 10 on site at Parkside Crescent in Spalding for 
June/July next year

Indicator New Homes - Affordable Trend Chart

 

Same Period Last Year

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2017/18 N/A N/A 9

Current Performance

Numerator Denominator Value

Q1 2018/19 N/A N/A 7

 Current Target  What does good look like?  Latest Note  

Number of affordable 
homes completed in the 
District the period 

 
 Data Only

 
Higher is better as we look to increase the 
number of affordable properties in the District 

7 properties in June become available in Pinchbeck and Holbeach

 

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B

South Holland Proposed Performance Indicators 2018/19

Indicator Description Status Rationale Target

% of household 
waste recycled 
or composted

% of household waste which has 
been recycled and composted 
(includes garden waste) against 
all the household waste 
collected

Keep

Links to Critical Activity 9 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of the waste service in 
collection of recycling and 
waste

Annual 
average 
33.92%

Missed Waste 
Collection Rate

Number of missed collections 
per 100,000 people Keep

Links to Critical Activity 9 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of the waste service 

33

Commercial 
Property 
Occupancy

Occupancy levels of the 
council's industrial units Keep

Links to Critical Activity 14 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of the commercial property 
portfolio

90%

Staff turnover %

% of total leavers against total 
number of staff employed in 
period (includes involuntary 
leavers) 

Keep
Links to critical activity 11 and 
is monitored within risk 
reporting to members

2.5% quarterly

Housing re-let 
(void) time 
(total ave. key 
to key) All 
Tenures

Total time in days from keys in 
to keys out - including major 
works for all tenures (General 
Needs and Sheltered Housing) 
This is calculated by total 
number of days properties 
remain vacant divided by the 
number or properties vacant in 
the period

Keep

Links to critical activity 1 and 
provides assurance of the 
ongoing work to let our 
properties in an efficient and 
structured way.

28 days

Working Days 
Lost to Sickness 
per FTE

Total number of working days 
lost per Full Time Equivalent. 
This is calculated by taking the 
number of days lost to sickness 
and dividing it by the number of 
full time equivalent staff in the 
period

Keep

Links to Critical Activity 16 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of the Council for managing 
sickness

10 Days 
Annually

Working Days 
Lost to Long 
Term Sickness 
per FTE

Number of working days lost 
per Full Time Equivalent for long 
term sickness. 
This is calculated by taking the 
number of days lost to long 
term sickness and dividing it by 
the number of full time 
equivalent staff in the period

Keep

Links to Critical Activity 16 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of the Council for managing 
sickness

Data Only

Page 55



Working Days 
Lost to Short 
Term Sickness 
per FTE

Number of working days lost 
per Full Time Equivalent for 
short term sickness. 
This is calculated by taking the 
number of days lost to long 
term sickness and dividing it by 
the number of full time 
equivalent staff in the period

Keep

Links to Critical Activity 16 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of the Council for managing 
sickness

Data Only

Cases Prevented 
from 
Homelessness 
per 1,000 
households

P1E Return - Prevention and 
Relieving of Homelessness 
Number of potentially homeless 
cases diverted from 
homelessness per 1,000 
households

Keep

Links to Critical Activity 4 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of the housing service to 
support prevention of 
homelessness

Data Only

Housing Benefit 
LA Error Rate

Local Authority error in Housing 
Benefit overpayment 
Amount of benefits overpaid 
divided by benefits paid (% of 
overall expenditure)

Keep

Links to Critical Activity 11 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the Councils 
drive to provide accessible 
services

0.42%

Business Rate In 
Year Collection 
Rate

Amount of Business Rates 
collected in the year against the 
total collectable debit

Keep

Links to Critical Activity 23 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the Councils 
performance in regards to 
collection of business rates

Accumulating 
to 97% target

Council Tax In 
Year Collection 
Rate

Amount of Council Tax collected 
in the year against the total 
collectable debit

Keep

Links to Critical Activity 11 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the Councils 
performance in regards to 
council tax collection

Accumulating 
to 97% target

% of due rent 
collected on 
Welland homes 
properties

The percentage of rent 
collected from maximum 
possible rent to be collected

Keep

Links to Critical Activity 1 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the Councils 
performance in regards to 
rent collection of the 
properties let by Welland 
Homes

95%

New Homes - 
Affordable

Number of affordable homes 
completed in the District the 
period

Keep

Links to Critical Activity 6 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the number of 
affordable homes delivered in 
the district

Data Only

% of Calls 
Abandoned

% of calls that are abandoned 
(call terminated prior to 
answering), excluding those 
abandoned within 5 seconds. 
This is a combined measure 
across Customer Contact, 
Revenues and Benefits calls

Keep

Links to Critical Activity 17 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the Councils 
drive to provide accessible 
services

Data Only

Page 56



Gross income 
generated by 
EHT&C

The amount of gross income 
generated by the Environmental 
Health, Training and 
consultancy commercial trading 
arm

New

Links to Critical Activity 13 of 
new corporate plan and 
provide assurance of the 
success of EHT&C for 
generating income

£44,500 
Quarterly

Net Income 
generated by 
EHT&C (after 
expenditure)

The amount of net income 
(surplus after expenditure) 
generated by the Environmental 
Health, Training and 
consultancy commercial trading 
arm

New

Links to Critical Activity 13 of 
new corporate plan and 
provide assurance of the 
success of EHT&C for 
generating income

£29,500 
Quarterly

Time to process 
DFG 
Applications

Overall time from appointment 
to completion. New

Links to Critical Activity 3 of 
new corporate plan and 
provide assurance of the work 
being done to support keeping 
people in their homes longer

Data Only

% of complaints 
responded to 
within agreed 
timescales

the percentage of the 
complaints that were 
responded to within the period, 
that were responded to within 
the agreed timescales (15 day 
stage 1, 20 days stage 2)

New

Links to Critical Activity 11 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of complaint responding

80%

% of FOI 
requests 
responded to 
within time limit

Of the FOI's responded to in the 
month, the percentage of ones 
that were responded to within 
the statutory 20 day timescale

New

Links to Critical Activity 17 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the delivery of 
statutory requirement to 
respond to FOIs

100%

% of time lost to 
sickness

This PI measures the 
percentage of time (in hours) 
that has been lost in the period 
due to sickness, out of a total 
amount of hours possible based 
on full attendance and no 
absences.

New

Links to Critical Activity 16 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of the Council for managing 
sickness

Data Only

Empty 
Properties - 
Back In Use

Number of empty properties 
brought back into use through 
intervention by the council

New

Links to Critical Activity 1 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the work to bring 
empty properties back into 
use which can improve new 
homes bonus

75 Annually

Businesses 
Assisted to 
Develop or 
Grow via 
Grants4Growth

Number of existing businesses 
assisted to develop or grow 
through Economic Development 
support - Grants for Growth

New

Links to Critical Activity 19 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the work being 
done to deliver Grants for 
Growth and support 
businesses and growth in the 
district

24 Annually

Number of 
Grants Awarded 
via 
Grants4Growth

Total number of grants that are 
awarded - grants for growth New

Links to Critical Activity 20 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the work being 
done to deliver Grants for 

52 Annually

Page 57



Growth and support 
businesses and growth in the 
district

Local 
Unemployment 
Levels

NOMIS/JCP New
Links to Critical Activity 21 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
context on the district

Data Only

% of non-major 
applications 
determined 
within 8 weeks 
or agreed 
extension

This PI measures the % of non-
major applications that have 
been determined within 8 
weeks or agreed extension, this 
is in line with national 
requirements.

New

Links to Critical Activity 11 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of the planning process in 
regards to planning 
application determination

70%

% of Major 
applications 
determined 
within 13 weeks 
or agreed 
extension

% determined within 13 weeks 
(or with agreed extension or 
PPA)

New

Links to Critical Activity 11 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of the planning process in 
regards to planning 
application determination

60%

New Homes 
Delivered

The number of new homes 
delivered by the council 
(acquired directly, built directly 
or enabled by the authority 
from direct intervention)

New

Links to Critical Activity 6 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of the Council in supporting 
new homes in the District in 
line with the Local Plan

408 Annual 
from Local 
Plan

New homes 
delivered by 
SHDC through 
Welland Homes

Number of new homes 
delivered via Welland Homes in 
the period

New

Links to Critical Activity 1 of 
new corporate plan to provide 
assurance of the performance 
of Welland homes

Data Only

% of Customer 
Complaints 
Upheld - Stage 1

Complaints upheld as a % of all 
stage 1 complaints closed in 
period 
This is calculated using the 
number of complaints upheld 
divided by the total number of 
complaints closed in the period

Remove

Added an alternative that 
captures the % of complaints 
responded to within timescale 
which measures performance 
in a better way

-

% of Customer 
Complaints 
Upheld - Stage 2

Complaints upheld as a % of all 
stage 2 complaints closed in 
period 
This is calculated using the 
number of complaints upheld 
divided by the total number of 
complaints closed in the period

Remove

Added an alternative that 
captures the % of complaints 
responded to within timescale 
which measures performance 
in a better way

-

Average Wait 
Time in Seconds

Average time to answer phone 
calls in seconds 
This is measured across 
customer services, revenues 
and benefits calls.

Remove

Indicator is not indicative of 
good satisfaction levels. 
Looking to understand the 
best way to measure 
satisfaction of service

-

Page 58



Waste sent to 
'Energy from 
Waste' per 
Household (kg)

Number of Kg’s of residual 
waste collected per household 
sent to Energy from Waste 
Calculated by 'residual waste 
collected' x 1000 then divided 
by number of households waste 
has been collected from

Remove

Monitored on an operational 
and portfolio level with more 
relevant waste measures  
reported  including 
introducing fly tipping 
indicators in enforcement 
suite

-

% of all planning 
applications 
determined 
within time

Number of planning 
applications determined within 
their statutory times divided by 
total number of applications 
received. 
Includes all application types 
(majors, minors, others)

Remove

Proposed introduction of 2 
indicators to separate the 
major and non major 
applications as they differ in 
timescales

-

Housing re-let 
(void) time 
(Keys In to Keys 
Back from 
Contractor) - All

Total time in days from keys in 
from tenant to works 
completed by the contractor 
and the property is ready to be 
let 

Report 
as 
exceptio
n via 
overall 
indicato
r

Proposed to keep overall 
housing void indicator and 
report by exception the areas 
which fall below expected 
standard within the context of 
the quarterly reports

-

Housing re-let 
(void) time 
(Contractor) - 
General Needs

Total time in days from keys in 
from tenant to works 
completed by the contractor 
and the property is ready to be 
let. This is only for 'general 
needs' properties 

Report 
as 
exceptio
n via 
overall 
indicato
r

Proposed to keep overall 
housing void indicator and 
report by exception the areas 
which fall below expected 
standard within the context of 
the quarterly reports

-

Housing re-let 
(void) time 
(Contractor) - 
Sheltered 
Housing

Total time in days from keys in 
from tenant to works 
completed by the contractor 
and the property is ready to be 
let. This is only for 'sheltered' 
properties 

Report 
as 
exceptio
n via 
overall 
indicato
r

Proposed to keep overall 
housing void indicator and 
report by exception the areas 
which fall below expected 
standard within the context of 
the quarterly reports

-

Housing re-let 
(void) time 
(Letting) - 
General Needs

Total time in days for properties 
to be let after the works were 
completed by the contractor. 
This is only for 'general needs' 
properties 

Report 
as 
exceptio
n via 
overall 
indicato
r

Proposed to keep overall 
housing void indicator and 
report by exception the areas 
which fall below expected 
standard within the context of 
the quarterly reports

-

Housing re-let 
(void) time 
(Letting) - 
Sheltered 
Housing

Total time in days for properties 
to be let after the works were 
completed by the contractor. 
This is only for 'sheltered' 
properties 

Report 
as 
exceptio
n via 
overall 
indicato
r

Proposed to keep overall 
housing void indicator and 
report by exception the areas 
which fall below expected 
standard within the context of 
the quarterly reports

-

Page 59



Housing re-let 
(void) time (Key 
to Key) - 
General Needs

Total time in days from keys in 
from tenant to keys out to the 
new tenant. This is only for 
'general needs' properties 

Report 
as 
exceptio
n via 
overall 
indicato
r

Proposed to keep overall 
housing void indicator and 
report by exception the areas 
which fall below expected 
standard within the context of 
the quarterly reports

-

Housing re-let 
(void) time (Key 
to Key) - 
Sheltered 
Housing

Total time in days from keys in 
from tenant to keys out to the 
new tenant. This is only for 
'general needs' properties 

Report 
as 
exceptio
n via 
overall 
indicato
r

Proposed to keep overall 
housing void indicator and 
report by exception the areas 
which fall below expected 
standard within the context of 
the quarterly reports

-

Page 60



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Rob Walker, Executive Director - Place

To: Performance Monitoring Panel Tuesday, 31 July 2018 

(Author: Dee Bedford Community Safety & Enforcement Manager)

Subject Enforcement Update

Purpose: To provide Members with an update on Enforcement activity 

Recommendation(s): 

1) That the content of the report be noted

2) That a further update is provided to the Performance Monitoring Panel in six months’ time

1.0     BACKGROUND

1.1  Enforcement activity in the council is extensive and includes planning enforcement, 
contraventions of building regulations, littering, fly-tipping, anti-social behaviour, abandoned 
vehicles, evictions, possessions, prohibition orders, food safety, health and safety, 
licensing, noise nuisance and pollution.  The activity covers individuals, public areas, 
homes, and businesses.

1.2  All departments dealing with enforcement do so in line with the Enforcement Policy agreed 
on 29th May at Cabinet, ensuring they take enforcement action when proportionate and 
necessary to do so.

All services have a tiered approach to enforcement; starting with compliance or warnings 
and progressing to other enforcement activity where proportionate and appropriate.  

Compliance advice, guidance and support is included as a stage of enforcement – this 
advice is sometimes in the form of a warning letter or informal caution.

Statutory notices – including Prohibition Notices, Community Protection Notices and 
Improvement Notices are issued when there are breaches and they are legally binding.  
Failure to comply with these can be a criminal offence and may lead to prosecution.

Prosecution will only be considered where the Council is satisfied that it has sufficient 
evidence to provide a realistic prospect of conviction against the defendant(s).

1.3 Members of Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel have both 
requested information on Enforcement across the authority.  Officers across all relevant 
council services have reviewed all enforcement information that the Council holds. A suite 
of PIs to complement the new Corporate Enforcement Policy has been developed and will 
be reported against in Quarter 2.

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



This will provide members with six monthly updates on enforcement activity across the 
three levels:

1) Advice / Warnings

2) Formal Notices 

3) Prosecution 

Key areas of focus to members will be highlighted as distinct and separate PIs.  For 18/19 
these subject areas for inclusion are;

Flytips
Injunctions
Fixed Penalty Notices
Health and Safety Prosecutions
Food Hygiene Improvement Notices
Dog Fouling 
Possession - Court Hearings
Housing Improvement Notices

1.4  Enforcement cases

The following cases are a sample of the types of enforcement recently undertaken by the 
council;

Public Protection

1.4.1 The Food, Health & Safety Team successfully prosecuted a local company this year after 
entering a guilty plea for breaching Section 2, The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974. 
Action was taken against the company following an investigation into an accident that 
occurred at the site in September 2016; a member of staff, after completing aerial tree 
work, fell from the tree whilst descending. The fall resulted in a serious injury. 

The investigation found that a risk assessment had been completed for the task the day 
before, however the findings of this were not documented, the injured party was not trained 
to complete aerial tree work, nor wore any fall arrest system, and the work area was not 
cordoned off.

A fine of £20,000 was imposed in line with the sentencing guidelines, but reduced to 
£13,000 to allow full credit for an early guilty plea. Full Costs were awarded and a victim 
surcharge of £170.

The District Judge awarded costs in full as a thorough investigation led to a guilty plea.  

Housing 

1.4.2 Private Sector Housing were successful in prosecuting a landlord for failing to comply with 
an Improvement Notice (5 offences) and for failing to licence a House of Multiple 
Occupation in June this year.

The team carried out a series of inspections of a property after the Food Health and Safety 
Team raised concerns about the condition and occupancy of the property. It was found to 
be in need of urgent work and an Improvement Notice was issued. Over the following 

Page 62



months further reminders were sent but the instructed work was not being carried out and, 
after the landlord failed to act upon the five identified hazards, coupled with the failure to 
licence a House of Multiple Occupancy, she was summoned to Boston Magistrates Court. 
The landlord failed to attend court but magistrates agreed to hear the case in her absence, 
and she was found guilty of the offences charged. She was also ordered to pay a 
contribution to the council’s costs and a mandatory victim surcharge, bringing her total fine 
to £4,160.

The successful prosecution was publicised to raise awareness of the legislation and 
standards in place and that the Council will take action against non-compliance.

Planning 

1.4.3 In May, the Planning department received numerous complaints regarding overgrown 
areas of open space at a number of locations within the district, including Weston, Spalding 
and Long Sutton.  These areas have not been adopted by the council and were due to be 
maintained by the original developer.  The services of a landscape contractor had not been 
employed and these areas had become very overgrown and unsightly.  The council were 
able to work with the developer which resulted in them taking on a contractor and getting 
the required works done without delay, improving the outlook for many South Holland 
residents and allowing them to once again use their amenity space.  The developer have 
advised that all their sites will be cut on a regular basis going forward.

This example demonstrates of where early intervention and communication can ensure 
compliance without the need for more formal enforcement action.

Community Safety 

1.4.4 In July, the Community Safety and Enforcement team were successful in obtaining an 
injunction against a young person in the Crowland area. The court case followed extensive 
work between South Holland District Council and South Holland Police after residents in 
Crowland reported ongoing problems caused by the young person’s behaviour. 

The injunction will be in place for six months and includes a list of behaviours that he is 
prohibited from doing but also includes positive requirements to assist him with changing 
his behaviour including support from the youth offending service.

The outcome of this case has been publicised to ensure that our communities have 
confidence in knowing that where there is sufficient evidence, enforcement action will be 
taken. It also sends a clear message to any other young person that anti-social behaviour 
will not be tolerated by the council but also the residents in their community who are willing 
to report.

1.5      Case Management

A new county wide case management system called E-CINS is now in place for all reports 
of anti-social behaviour that are received by the Council. The Community Safety and 
Enforcement team use it as their primary system. Housing Management also use it to log 
all cases of anti-social behaviour. Members of the Environmental Protection team have 
access to the system which enables the teams to share information in a safe and secure 
environment and also allows users to ensure they have the most up to date information 
should a resident make contact. A lead officer is allocated on the system and they are the 
main point of contact which helps prevent residents having to make contact with a number 

Page 63



of teams if there case involves a variety of behaviours where more than one department 
may be involved.

Any cases that are entered onto the system receive case supervision by the officers direct 
line management. It is the responsibility of both the case officer and the supervisor to 
ensure that cases are managed in line with the standard operating procedures agreed at a 
county level and also in line with the Council’s Enforcement Policy.

The system uses a mapping tool to show where incidents of anti-social behaviour have 
occurred across the district and work is underway to allow data to be extracted into wards 
rather than specific address locations. This will help highlight at an earlier stage where 
behaviour is escalating and therefore resources can be directed as appropriate. 

1.6      GIS mapping

The council has a new GIS mapping tool and work is underway to look at how this system 
can link with E-CINS to allow members to have ward specific information in future. 

1.7   Training

In Autumn, a briefing will be delivered on anti-social behaviour, community safety and 
enforcement. This will be open to both district and Parish Council Members. The training 
will cover the powers that the Council holds to take action and also on how all stakeholders 
can support the process.

1.8  Community Wardens

Following a successful recruitment process the Council has been able to appoint two 
Community Wardens.  Their roles commenced in June 2018.  Since being in post the 
Community Wardens have undertaken the following;

 Patrols across the district to familiarise themselves with the area and to also meet our 
communities, including residents and business owners. This has provided an 
increased visibility and on the ground presence for the Council.

 Engaged at all of the districts markets to raise the profile of the Community Wardens, 
to engage with residents to understand any local issues they may have and to 
encourage reporting.

 Met with a number of community groups across the district. 
 Collected information through questionnaires and discussions with South Holland 

communities around concerns they may have.
 Education around the Public Space Protection Order in Spalding through direct 

conversation with local residents.  
 Making contact with local agencies to familiarise themselves with what support is 

available in the area including county contacts such as the Community Collaboration 
Worker

The first phase of the project will focus on education and awareness raising.  It will also 
be key for the Community Wardens to collect and collate as much information as 
possible to establish a baseline of data to help to provide an understanding of how our 
communities feel within the district about crime and anti-social behaviour. Any specific 
concerns that are raised are fed back into the Council for the relevant department to 
investigate and people are educated on how they can report directly through either 
customer services or using our online reporting option.

Page 64



The Community Wardens will have the ability to issue fixed penalty notices. A key focus 
will be to enforce any breaches of the Public Space Protection Order but will also include 
issuing fixed penalty notices across the district for behaviours including littering, dog 
fouling and graffiti. The report to the Performance Monitoring Panel in six months time 
will include a breakdown of any fixed penalty notices that have been issued and what 
they have been issued for.

The Community Warden patrols will be actioned across the district – targeting hotspot 
areas that are determined by reports both to the Council and to key partners.  How to 
report concerns, and the importance of reporting incidents will continue to be a key focus 
of the team’s communication; this will continue to direct the work, focus, interventions 
and enforcement action.

1.9 There has been positive action in the first quarter of 18/19 to enable effective 
enforcement.  There is further work to be undertaken throughout the year.  The areas of 
focus include; 

 Regular monitoring and reporting of use of enforcement tools and powers 
including Fixed Penalty Notices

 Revised literature and online material explaining processes and service 
standards.

 Development of customer satisfaction surveys.
 Increased communication and social media for informing and updating.
 Delivery of key campaigns for 18/19 to support prevention.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Do nothing.

2.2 Note the contents of the report and provide Members with a further update report in six 
months’ time.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1 It is recommended that the contents of this report are noted and that members of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel have an up to date understanding of the enforcement that 
is taking place across the district.  

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The report will give an overview of the Council’s enforcement activities.

4.2   It will give assurances that enforcement action is being taken appropriately and that 
resident and community concerns are being addressed.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1        Constitutional and Legal

5.1.1  There are many pieces of legislation that span across Planning, Building Control, Housing,  
 Environmental, Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Disorder and Public Protection functions.   
 The most appropriate tool or power will be used for each case to resolve the issue.

   

Page 65



5.2        Corporate Priorities

5.2.1  The service covered in this report supports three of the Council’s Corporate Priorities; 

- To develop safer, stronger, healthier and more independent communities while 
protecting the most vulnerable

- To have pride in South Holland by supporting the district and residents to develop and 
thrive

- To provide the right services, at the right time and in the right way

5.3  Crime and Disorder 

5.3.1 There are no direct implications from this report.  However, taking appropriate enforcement 
action is a key part of community safety and addressing crime and disorder concerns.

5.4 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.4.1 There are no direct implications from this report.  It should be noted that surveillance 
techniques and investigations need to consider Article 8 of the Human Rights Act which 
covers right to privacy. 

5.5      Financial 

5.5.1  There are no direct implications from this report.  However, some enforcement action can   
result in financial penalties alongside proportionate legal costs.  

5.6        Reputation 

5.6.1 It is important that the council demonstrates its commitment to taking appropriate and 
proportionate enforcement action and that it effectively deals with local concerns. 

5.7         Risk Management 

5.7.1 Enforcement action, particularly when it reaches court proceedings, is open to challenge.    
It is important that there is robust evidence to take enforcement action beyond an initial 
warning stage.  There needs to be confidence in a case if it leads to court.  Any case with 
insufficient evidence which fails at court has significant cost implications for local 
authorities and officers have a duty to use public money appropriately.  Enforcement 
action should be in the best interest of the public and be proportional, consistent, 
transparent and targeted.

5.8.1   Staffing

5.8.2 There are no implications to staffing as a direct result of this report. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 Services are provided for all those living, working or visiting the district.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Page 66



Background papers:-  

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Dee Bedford, Community Safety and Enforcement Manager
Telephone Number: 01775 76 44 57
Email: dbedford@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 
Exempt Decision: No 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of:  Executive Director (Place)

To: Performance Monitoring Panel – 31st July 2018

(Author: Rachael Hunns Asset Project Officer)

Subject South Holland Centre Catering Lease and Service Level Agreement

Purpose: Provide an update on the future catering options at the South Holland Centre

Recommendation(s):

(a) To note the contents of this report.

(b) That a further update is provided to the Performance Monitoring Panel 13th November 2018. 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 In February 2018, a new catering lease was entered into for the South Holland Centre café 
and bar. This lease was signed under the same terms and conditions as previous South 
Holland Centre catering leases.  The service level and lease term are until December 2019, 
with a break clause allowing either party to terminate the lease on giving not less than 3 
months’ notice. 

1.2 Since February 2018, the Council has received positive feedback regarding the catering 
supplier. In addition, the supplier has recently been awarded a ‘5 star’ food hygiene rating. 

2.0      OPTIONS

2.1 That this update report be noted. 

3.0       REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

            3.1 The new arrangements in place since February are working well. 

3.2 Officers will be able to provide a comprehensive update to members of the Performance 
Monitoring Panel in November 2018 on moving forward.  

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 Members are informed of the current status of the lease and service level agreement.

Page 69

Agenda Item 10



5.0      IMPLICATIONS

5.1     In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of the
decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues;
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality &
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management;
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation
Programme; Other. 

5.2 This report is for information only and as such there are no implications for the area 
identified in section 5.1.

6.0     WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1     No one Ward or specific community is affected.

7.0      ACRONYMS

7.1 None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Rachael Hunns Asset Project Officer
Telephone Number 01775 764838
Email: RachaelHunns@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: N 
Exempt Decision: N 

This report refers to a Discretionary Service
Appendices attached to this report: None

Page 70



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager - Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)

To: Performance Monitoring Panel –31 July 2018

Author: Christine Morgan – Democratic Services Officer

Subject: Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel

Recommendation:

That the Panel gives consideration to the report and identifies any issues for discussion; 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 
inclusion on its Work Programme.

1.2 Issues

1.2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration.  These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet.  This appendix will be updated as new 
items are identified.

1.2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel.  The table 
shows:

 The name of the task group
 What it wants to achieve
 Key dates
 Membership of the task group
 When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel

1.2.3 It is hoped that in presenting the information in this way, and by having the report as a 
standing item on the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the 
opportunity for councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme.

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow councillors to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the 
Work Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date.

Page 71

Agenda Item 11



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide councillors 
with up to date and relevant information.  Timelines for various calendar items and 
proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

In preparing this report, the report author has considered the likely implications of 
the decision - particularly in terms of Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues; 
Constitutional & Legal; Contracts; Corporate Priorities; Crime & Disorder; Equality & 
Diversity/Human Rights; Financial; Health & Wellbeing; Reputation; Risk Management; 
Safeguarding; Staffing; Stakeholders/Consultation/Timescales; Transformation 
Programme; Other. Where the report author considers that there may be implications under 
one or more of these headings, these are identified below.

5.1 Corporate Priorities

5.1.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, councillors consider the 
suitability of the subject, taking into account such considerations as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes.  One of the 
indicators against which each potential task group is scored identifies how strongly the topic 
links to the Council’s key aims and priorities. 

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 This report has no implications however, as individual items are progressed through the 
Work Programme, their impact on wards and communities will be assessed.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name and Post: Christine Morgan
Telephone Number: 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Work Programme Calendar
Appendix B Task Group Work Programme 2018/19

Page 72



 APPENDIX A

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME 
ITEMS

Date of Meeting Agenda items

31 July 2018  Catering lease, South Holland Centre – To outline future 
catering contract options.

 Enforcement – update report on how the Authority is 
addressing the various types of enforcement, following the 
Authority-wide reorganisation. (last update 6/2/18)

 Performance Overview Report Q1 – 2018-19
26 September 
2018

 Voids Task Group – Update report on progress in actioning 
recommendations of the Task Group

 S106 monies report – to provide information on issues raised 
during last update on 2 May 2018.

 Are financial savings predicted from various re-organisations 
being delivered? 

1 November 
2018
Joint PMP/PDP

 Corporate Plan 2019-23
 ICT and Digital Strategy
 Customer Access Strategy

13 November 
2018

 Performance Overview Report Q2 – 2018-19
 Report on the Application of the Council’s Vexatious Policy
 Opportunity Peterborough
 Crime and Disorder – Update report on community safety and 

how it is being delivered through the various tiers of Groups 
and Panels (including the East Lincs CSP and newly formed 
Lincolnshire CSP) – Update to be provided every six months 
by the Portfolio Holder for Community Development. Last 
discussed at 2/5/18 meeting where it was requested that 
information to this meeting be provided on – 1) Evidence of 
publicity around the LSP’s initiatives; and 2) Details of 
progress in the key initiatives.

 Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Contract Task Group – 
update on progress of recommendations (last update received 
2 May 2018 – update to address issues raised at this meeting)

 Economic Development  - Update report (6 months from last 
update 2 May 2018)

 Information report on future commercialisation projects 
30 January 
2019

 Performance Overview Report Q3 – 2018-19
 Emergency Response – Information report to be provided 

once the Terms of Reference with regard to Emergency 
Planning have been clarified.

20 March 2019 
Future meetings 
2018/19 
municipal year, 
and items yet to 
be allocated.

 Commercialisation (2) – how effectively is the Authority 
managing commercial opportunities?  Second report, a 
general report around commercialisation.

 Health Inequality – Health Commissioning Group to be invited 
to a meeting to provide a presentation

 Cost of running the South Holland Centre 
 What areas of risk exist within Public Services for cost 

shunting, and how can this be avoided? 

Page 73



For consideration later in the year

 Note: Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and PDP have 
requested that a special Joint Meeting will be held to discuss the setting up 
of the South Holland Building Consultancy prior to it being considered by 
Cabinet (date to be confirmed).

 Commercialisation – As potential projects arise, PMP to consider scrutiny

****************
To be considered annually:

The Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group presented its Final Report to 
Council on 21 January 2015.  Its first recommendation was:

That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that the Task Group has 
considered the Commission’s Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the 
Council is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the Commission in order to 
outline the actions proposed by the Council; and (iii) invites  the Performance 
Monitoring Panel to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) basis 
for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council remains compliant with 
Charity Commission Guidance.

Membership of Task Group to be agreed and meet on an annual basis to 
consider the issue.

Page 74



APPENDIX B

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2018/2019

Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Public Toilets Task Group To look at the locations, costs and 
refurbishment of all public toilets within the 
district that are the responsibility of the 
Authority, and to consider their actual usage.

Scope to be agreed at first meeting of the Task 
Group (To be confirmed).

6 February 
2018

23 April 2018 J R Astill
CJTH Brewis
T A Carter
GK Dark 
(Chairman)
PC Foyster

PMP - 26 
September 2018

Cabinet – 20 
November 2018

Swimming Pool and 
Leisure Centre Contract 
Task Group

To review the Spalding swimming pool and 
leisure centre, specifically:
 To consider performance, in relation to the 

contract, by the Authority and the 
contractor, particularly with reference to 
building maintenance and cleanliness, 
promotion of the facilities and reinvestment 
in the facilities;

 To look at the Council’s performance in 
monitoring the leisure facilities; and

 To learn from the outcomes of this scrutiny, 
to inform future contracts and contract 
monitoring.

1 December 
2015

21 January 
2016

J R Astill
T A Carter
G K Dark 
(Chairman)
J L King
A M Newton

30 August 2016

To Cabinet 8 
November 2016

Response and 
update on 
progress PMP 
4/2/17, 16/5/17 
and 7/11/17.
Next update 
2/5/18.

Performance of the re-
letting of voids Task 

To review the Council’s performance of re-
letting void properties and to make 

15 June 
2016

3 October 
2016

GR Aley 
(Chairman)

16 May 2017
To Cabinet 25 

P
age 75



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Group recommendations to help improve MD Booth
CJTH Brewis
TA Carter

July 2017

Updates on 
progress - PMP 
7/11/17, next 
update 26/9/18.

Sir Halley Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group

Recommendation of the original Task Group to 
appoint a Task Group on an annual (single 
meeting) basis for the specific purpose of 
ensuring that the Council remained compliant 
with Charity Commission Guidance.

15 June 
2016

Date to be 
confirmed.

GR Aley
JR Astill
GK Dark
PC Foyster
AM Newton

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group

Purpose of Review – To establish the current 
situation with regard to CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on the way 
forward.

Terms of Reference – To examine the 
effectiveness of the SHDC CCTV service and 
prospects for future provision.

Panel received update on 8 April 2014 from the 
Portfolio Holder for Localism and Big Society 
on the position regarding CCTV.  Performance 
information will be available on the new system 
in the future, once it becomes operational.  

6 November 
2012 

21 November 
2012 

B Alcock
M Howard
R M Rudkin
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman)

  
Membership 
to be 
considered 
following 
District 
Council 

Interim report to 
PMP 29 January 
2013 
Interim report to 
Cabinet 19 
February 2013.
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 26 March 
2013
Updates to PMP:
8 April 2014, and 
six-monthly 
thereafter. 

P
age 76



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

The Task Group will remain in operation to 
scrutinise performance and will start to do 
this once the information becomes 
available.

Election 

Leisure Facilities Task 
Group

Joint Task Group 
incorporating members of 
the Performance 
Monitoring and Policy 
Development Panels. 

To make recommendations, regarding the 
present and future leisure     provision in South 
Holland.

1. By establishing what leisure provision the 
District Council presently provides, 
examining costs, resident satisfaction and 
competitiveness in order to identify ways of 
increasing income or reducing expenditure;

2. To understand what the District Council 
wishes to provide and what the public and 
major employers need; 

3. To examine the options for future provision 
either to be supplied by the Council, the 
private sector or shared management.

Agreed at PMP 25 November 2014 – A date 
for completion of the Business Plan looking at 
Leisure Services provision, being drawn 
together by the Community Development and 
Health Manager, be confirmed by the Assistant 

30 May 
2012

21 January 
2014

G R Aley 
(Chairman)
D Ashby
A Casson
G K Dark
R Perkins
S Slade
E Sneath
S Wilkinson

Lead Officer: 
Phil Adams

Membership 
to be 
considered 
following 
District 
Council 
Election

Interim report 
presented to joint 
PMP/PDP – 19 
August 2014 
To Cabinet 7 
October 2014
Tracking of 
recommendations 
to PMP 25 
November 2014
Update on leisure 
options to PMP 3 
March 2015 (PDP 
members to 
attend PMP 
meeting)

P
age 77



Name of Task Group What the Task Group wants to achieve Date added 
to Work 
Programme

Date Work 
Commenced    

Membership 
of Task 
Group

Proposed date of 
report to Panel

Director Community, and that a joint meeting of 
the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy 
Development Panel, for consideration of the 
document, be arranged.

Following consideration of the update to PMP 
on 3 March 2015 (PDP members were invited 
to attend), it was agreed that leisure provision 
must be a priority for the Council, and must be 
considered as a priority by the next 
administration following the District Council 
election.

The effectiveness of 
management companies 
set up to undertake 
maintenance on 
residential estates 
throughout the district 
past, present and for the 
future.

Scope to be confirmed. 25 
November 
2014

To be 
confirmed

To be 
confirmed

To be confirmed

P
age 78


	Agenda
	2a) Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel
	2b) Performance Monitoring Panel
	7 Key Decision Plan
	8 Performance Overview Report Quarter 1 2018-19
	Appendix 1 for Quarter 1 2018-19 Performance Overview Report
	Appendix 2 for Quarter 1 2018-19 Performance Overview Report

	9 Enforcement Update
	10 South Holland Centre Catering Lease and Service Level Agreement
	11 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	Appendix  A
	Appendix B


